
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of September 6, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing October 2022 as Breast Cancer Awareness Month. 

3. Proclamation recognizing October 3-8, 2022 as Earth Science Week. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

4. Hearing on a complaint issued to Zainab LLC, d/b/a Up in Smoke, 2218 College Street, for a second 
tobacco violation. 
 
a) Oral comments. 
 
b) Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a Second Tobacco 
Violation regarding Up in Smoke, 2218 College Street. 

Old Business 

5. Pass Ordinance #3016, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
adoption of revised City Council Meeting Procedures, upon its second consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3017, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Utility Parkway, upon its second 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 6, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Hearst 2.0. 
b) Destination Iowa Grant Update. 
c) Orchard Hill Drive Fire Response. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

8. Receive and file the resignation of Beverly Michael as a member of the Health Trust Board. 

9. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Donna Mallin, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 
b) Julie Kliegl, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 
c) Robert Wright, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/0/2024. 
d) Anne Bonsall Hoekstra, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2026. 
e) Toni Wilson Wood, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2026. 
f) Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2025. 
g) Amy Dutton, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2025. 
h) Doug Johnson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2025. 
i) James Langel, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2025. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine- renewal. 
b) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
d) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service – renewal. 
e) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service – change in 
ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving the recommendation for the reappointment of the Acting Police Chief. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Animal Services with the Cedar 
Bend Humane Society for October 1, 2022-June 30, 2027. 

13. Resolution approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the College Hill Urban Revitalization 
Plan for residential building improvements located at 1803 College Street. 

14. Resolution approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the College Hill Urban Revitalization 
Plan for residential building improvements located at 1809 College Street. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Ostby Dance 
relative to providing Ballroom Dance classes. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of an Iowa Tourism Grant application for Cedar 
Falls Pocket Guides and Information Kiosks. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Destination Iowa grant application, and 
designating the Mayor as the official representative of the City relative to the Cedar Valley River 
Experience Project. 

18. Resolution granting the Iowa Economic Development certain financial assurances for the Cedar Falls 
match portion of the Destination Iowa Grant request relative to the Cedar Valley River Experience 
Project. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant 
application to the Federal Railroad Administration; and approving and authorizing the local match 
relative to  abandoning and removing the Cedar Falls Rail Spur. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Iowa Flatworks, Inc. for the 2022 
Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5.  

2



Page 3 of 3 

21. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Pirc-Tobin 
Construction, Inc. for the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

22. Allow Bills and Claims for September 19, 2022. 

Council Referrals 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Executive Session 

23. Executive Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the 
purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature disclosure could be reasonably 
expected to increase the price the governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce 
the price the governmental body would receive for that property; and for discussion of the City 
Administrator’s performance pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i) and City Code Section 2-217. 

Adjournment 

3



COMMUNITY CENTER 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:08 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Daughters of the American 
Revolution (DAR) representative Barb Gregerson led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

53952 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of August 15, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53953 -   City Clerk Danielsen announced that item #7 on the Consent Calendar was being 

removed from the agenda. 
 
53954 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

   Proclamation recognizing September 17-23, 2022 as Constitution Week. DAR 
representative Barb Gregerson accepted and commented. 

 
   Proclamation recognizing September 19-25, 2022 as National Rail Safety Week. 
 

53955 -  Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, requested an update on public restrooms 
downtown. 

 
  David LaMarche, 4024 Briarwood Drive, Parade of Homes Chairman, announced 

the annual Parade of Homes on September 15-18, 2022. 
 
53956 - City Administrator Gaines responded to a question by Rosemary Beach that a 

discussion on public restrooms was referred to an upcoming Committee meeting. 
 
  Mayor Green announced ARTapalooza this Saturday from 9 AM – 4PM 

downtown. 
 
  City Administrator Gaines and Mayor Green recognized Library employee Renee 

Lewis for her 40 years with the city. 
 
53957 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3015, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, be passed upon its third 
and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Dunn. 
Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3015 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

53958 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
 Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of August 10, 2022 

relative to an appeal hearing of a dangerous animal. 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of August 15, 
2022 relative to the following items: 
a) Fireworks follow-up. 
b) Downtown public parking structure. 
c) Safety Improvements - 6th & State to 6th & Main. 
d) Clarification of Private Shared Parking Requirements Referral to Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
the certified list for the position of Building Inspector. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2022. 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with 
Daffodils, Inc., d/b/a Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street, for a first 
tobacco violation. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
b) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 
c) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 
d) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 
e) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
f) SingleSpeed Brewing Co., 128 Main Street, Class C liquor, Special Class A 
beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
g) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
h) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 
i) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & 
outdoor service – temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 16 & 
September 29-30, 2022) 
j) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – 
change in ownership. 
k) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine – 
change in ownership. 
l) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor – change in 
ownership. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

53959 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
 Resolution #22,904, approving and authorizing execution of a Wellness Program 

Services Agreement with TMA @ Your Service, LLC (d/b/a “Wellworks For You”) 
relative to a platform for the city’s employee wellness program. 

 Resolution #22,905, approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio 
Lease relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in 
conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. 

 Resolution #22,906, approving and authorizing execution of a Cultural 
Leadership Partners Program Operating Support Grant with the Iowa Department 
of Cultural Affairs relative to Hearst Center Cultural Programs and Operational 
Expenses. 

 Resolution #22,907, approving and authorizing execution of three Agreements 
for Lease of Artwork relative to the Main Street Bridge Murals Project. 

 Resolution #22,908, approving and authorizing execution of a Agreement for 
Rotary Plaza with The Rotary Club of Cedar Falls relative to construction of a 
plaza, monument and recreational trail to be located at 205-221 West 1st Street. 

 Resolution #22,909, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special 
Promissory Note for property located at 1910 Tremont Street relative to the 
Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

 Resolution #22,910, approving a College Hill Neighborhood (CHN) Overlay 
Zoning District site plan for construction of a new duplex at 1224 West 20th 
Street. 

 Resolution #22,911, approving and accepting a Purchaser’s Affidavit and 
Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the Olive Street Box Culvert Project. 

 Resolution #22,912, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for a 
Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program Federal-aid SWAP Project 
with the Iowa Department of Transportation relative to the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project - 6th Street to University Avenue. 

 Resolution #22,913, approving and authorizing execution of two Vacancy 
Agreements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project - 
6th Street to University Avenue.  

 Resolution #22,914, approving and authorizing execution of fourteen Owner 
Purchase Agreements, seven Tenant Purchase Agreements and one Driveway 
Approach Agreement; and approving and accepting ten Temporary Construction 
Easements and seven Tenant Temporary Construction Easements, in 
conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project - 6th Street to University 
Avenue.  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,904 through #22,914 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53960- It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,915, 
approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the General Fund to the 
Capital Projects Fund, Health Insurance Fund, and Rec Capital Fund relative to 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, be adopted. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmember Sires, Harding, deBuhr, Schultz and Ganfield, and 
responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, Mayor Green 
and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,915 duly passed and adopted. 

53961- It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,916, 
receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Iowa 
Flatworks, Inc., in the amount of $49,143.69, being the lowest bid received for 
the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5, be adopted. Following a 
comment by Councilmember Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,916 duly passed and adopted. 

53962 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that a resolution setting 
September 19, 2022 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning 
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be 
adopted. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to postpone 
consideration until a determination regarding requirement of a super majority 
vote to overrule Planning & Zoning decision is made. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmember Harding and response by City Attorney Rogers, 
the motion to postpone carried 5-2, with Harding and Dunn voting Nay. 

 
53963 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3016, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
adoption of revised City Council Meeting Procedures, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Mayor Green provided a brief explanation of the proposed 
amendments. Following questions by Councilmember Ganfield, and responses 
by Mayor Green, it was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Sires to amend the 
motion to remove Section 2-69 from the document. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Harding, Kruse and Ganfield, and responses by 
City Attorney Rogers and Mayor Green, the motion to amend carried 
unanimously. The Mayor then put the question on the original motion, as 
amended, and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: Sires. Motion 
carried. 

 
53964 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3017, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Utility Parkway, be passed upon its 
first consideration. City Engineer Wicke provided a brief explanation of the 
proposed parking restrictions. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53965 -  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the bills and claims of 

September 6, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53966 - Community Development Director Sheetz responded to questions by 

Councilmembers Kruse and Schultz regarding Planning & Zoning review of site 
plans. 

 
  Public Works Director Schrage responded to a question by Councilmember 

Ganfield regarding repairs at The Little Red Schoolhouse 
  
  City Administrator Gaines gave an update on Place to Play Park concerns. 

Mayor Green and Councilmember Kruse also commented. 
   
53967 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:03 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 
 

BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 
OCTOBER 2022 

 

WHEREAS, each year about 237,000 cases of breast cancer are diagnosed in women in the 

United States each year, and 2,100 cases in men; and  

WHEREAS, 1 in 8 women will be diagnosed with breast cancer, and early detection is the 

best protection; and  

WHEREAS, observing October as Breast Cancer Awareness Month provides a special 

opportunity to educate our community on the importance of making evidence-based 

decisions in for long-term health; and 

WHEREAS, our community can create policies that support healthy living, make the healthy 

choice the easy choice; and encourage women to access screening at an age determined by 

a woman and her provider, all to help reduce breast cancer incidence and death; and 

WHEREAS, each October, Cedar Falls Public Safety Department personnel have conducted 

an awareness and fundraising drive through the sale of pink Police Division and Fire 

Division patches, and the Cedar Valley Cancer Committee will host the annual Pink Ribbon 

Walk/Run downtown during the first Saturday in October;  

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim October 2022, 

as Breast Cancer Awareness Month, and encourage Cedar Falls residents to educate 

themselves about breast cancer risk factors, pursue healthy lifestyle choices, take 

advantage of subsidized options for mammography screening, and to support our fellow 

residents impacted by a breast cancer diagnosis.  

Signed this 12th day of September, 2022. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
9

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

EARTH SCIENCE WEEK 
OCTOBER 3-8, 2022  

 

 
WHEREAS, the Earth Sciences are fundamental to understanding our natural 
resources; and  

WHEREAS, the Earth Sciences provide insight into the processes which have and 
continue to shape Earth’s resources; and  

WHEREAS, the Earth Sciences help us to manage and sustainably use Earth’s 
resources; and 

WHEREAS, the Earth Sciences provide us with technology to better understand 
how to explore and wisely extract resources for society’s well-being; and 

WHEREAS, the Earth Sciences offer insight into a wide range of resources from 
within and on our earth, to the atmosphere that surrounds us; and 

WHEREAS, the Earth Science open windows to better understand and appreciate 
“Our Resourceful Earth”; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 
October 3rd to 8th, 2022 as Earth Science Week throughout the city, and I 
encourage all citizens to develop and interest in, and appreciation for the Earth 
Sciences in support of a better community and world, and to visit earthsciweek.org 
for a wealth of educational resources.  

Signed this 1st day of September, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________                                          
Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
   

 

10

Item 3.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:       ORDER  

Zainab LLC d/b/a Up in Smoke   ASSESSING PENALTY 

2218 College Street     SECOND VIOLATION 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

On this ______ day of _______________, 2022, after a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council finds that based upon evidence submitted by the City 

Attorney's Office, the above-captioned permittee committed a second violation of Iowa 

Code Section 453A.2(1), selling, giving, or otherwise supplying any tobacco, tobacco 

products, or cigarettes to any person under eighteen years of age. 

THEREFORE, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby orders that a civil penalty of a 

thirty (30) day cigarette permit suspension be executed against the above-captioned 

permittee effective [Future Date].  This sanction will count as a second violation of Iowa 

Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(b). 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

11

Item 4.



12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: August 31, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Change Proposal for the City Code Regarding Council Meetings 

 REF: (a) CFD 1121.22: Council Meeting Procedures 

1. Summary.  Given the recent update to reference (a), I respectfully request five updates to the 
City Code to remove unnecessary duplication and clarify the code. The below changes would 
not modify any existing processes or authorities. I have obtained legal counsel from the City 
Attorney; he has expressed no concerns to me regarding the below changes.  

2. Requested Changes.  

 Change 1: Delete the existing Section 2-46 regarding meeting quorums: This 
statement is an unnecessary replication of Rule 2.3 in reference (a).  

 Change 2: Add a new Section 2-46 regarding council meeting procedures: This new 
language specifies that the city council shall establish and maintain council meeting 
procedures. In change #3 below, I request to remove the list of specific standing 
committees from the City Code and to instead permanently maintain them in the Council 
Meeting Procedures. In order to cite that document, I believe it is proper and logical to 
establish that document here in the City Code first.  

 Change 3: Remove the list of specific standing committees from Sec 2-68(b): This 
list is already maintained in the Council Meeting Procedures, so should be removed from 
the City Code.  Duplication causes confusion during times when the City Code and Council 
Meeting Procedures do not match, and this change will eliminate the problem. 

 Change 4: Delete Sec 2-70 to 2-72 regarding committee processes: These sections 
describe information provided to committees, committee reporting, and discharge of 
special committees already exist in reference (a). 

 Change 5: Delete Sec 2-103 to 2-130 regarding parliamentary rules: These rules are 
already contained in the Council Meeting Procedures, and provide no added value here. 
No similar language exists in the 30+ other Iowa municipal codes I have reviewed. 

2. Thank you for your consideration of these housekeeping changes, in the interest of continuous 
improvement of local government.  Please contact me with any questions. 

Encl: (1) Proposed changes to City Code of Ordinances 

### 

23

Item 5.



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-46, QUORUM, OF DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-46, ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING 

PROCEDURES; (2) REPEALING DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, OF ARTICLE II, CITY 

COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 2-68, APPOINTMENT; STANDING COMMITTEES, AND 

SECTION 2-69, NUMBER OF MEMBERS; AND (3) REPEALING DIVISION 3, 

RULES OF PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, ALL CONTAINED IN 

CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO ELIMINATE COUNCIL PROCEDURES FROM THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 2-46, Quorum, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-46, Establishment of Meeting Procedures, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-46. - Quorum. 

A majority of the whole number of members of the council shall be necessary to constitute a 

quorum. Less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. 

(Code 2017, § 2-42) 

Sec. 2-46. – Establishment of council meeting procedures, 

The Cedar Falls city council shall establish for itself, and update from time to time, rules for 

the conduct of its regular meetings, committee meetings, and work sessions.  These council 

meeting procedures shall include parliamentary guidance particular to the needs of the 

council. 

                 Section 2.  Division 2, Committees, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Division 2, Committees, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - COMMITTEES 

Sec. 2-68. - Appointment; standing committees. 

 (a) Anyll standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor, and anyll 

special committees shall be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the 

council. All Sstanding committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at 

24

Item 5.



the first regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as 

practicable, and the first person named on each committee shall be the chairperson of such 

committee. 

(b) Standing committees of the council may be established within the council meeting 

procedures provided for in Section 2-46.   

The following shall be the standing committees: 

(1) Administration.  

(2) Public works. 

(3) Community relations and planning. 

 

(Code 2017, § 2-61) 

Sec. 2-69. - Number of members. 

(a) The Sstanding committees of the council shall consist of seven members each. 

(b) All Sspecial committees of the council shall consist of five members each, unless some 

other number is specified by the resolution which appoints such special committee. 

(Code 2017, § 2-62; Ord. No. 2605, § 1, 10-23-2006) 

Sec. 2-70. - Distribution of information when matter referred to committee. 

The city clerk shall forward all the papers to the appropriate committees and officers as soon 

as possible after the referral to a committee of the council has been made. 

(Code 2017, § 2-63) 

Sec. 2-71. - Reports. 

Standing and special committees of the council to whom references are made, in all cases, 

shall report in writing the state of facts, with their opinion, which opinion shall be summed up 

in the form of an order, resolution or recommendation, unless otherwise ordered by the 

council. 

(Code 2017, § 2-64) 

Sec. 2-72. - Discharge of special committees. 

On the acceptance of a final report from a special committee of the council, the committee 

shall be considered discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered. 

25

Item 5.



(Code 2017, § 2-65) 

Secs. 2-737069—2-102. - Reserved. 

           

             Section 3.  Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                     _________________________ 

                                                                                       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26

Item 5.



ORDINANCE NO. 3016 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-46, QUORUM, OF DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-46, ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING 

PROCEDURES; (2) REPEALING DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, OF ARTICLE II, CITY 

COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 2-68, APPOINTMENT; STANDING COMMITTEES, AND 

SECTION 2-69, NUMBER OF MEMBERS; AND (3) REPEALING DIVISION 3, 

RULES OF PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, ALL CONTAINED IN 

CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO ELIMINATE COUNCIL PROCEDURES FROM THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 2-46, Quorum, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-46, Establishment of Meeting Procedures, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-46. – Establishment of council meeting procedures. 

The Cedar Falls city council shall establish for itself, and update from time to time, rules for 

the conduct of its regular meetings, committee meetings, and work sessions.  These council 

meeting procedures shall include parliamentary guidance particular to the needs of the 

council. 

                 Section 2.  Division 2, Committees, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Division 2, Committees, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - COMMITTEES 

Sec. 2-68. - Appointment; standing committees. 

 (a) Any standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor, and any special 

committees shall be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the council. 

Standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at the f irst 

regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, 

and the first person named on each committee shall be the chairperson of such committee. 

(b) Standing committees of the council may be established within the council meeting 

procedures provided for in Section 2-46.   

Secs. 2-69—2-102. - Reserved. 

27

Item 5.



           

             Section 3.  Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 6, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   September 6, 2022   

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

28

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific 

Streets 
 
The no parking ordinance on Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street 
currently exists on the northerly and westerly side of the street. Cedar Falls Utilities 
(CFU) has requested that the east and south side of the street within these same limits 
also be considered for no parking. Parking is currently allowed on the east and south 
side of Utility Parkway. This area creates concerns of a congested corridor that can lead 
to single lane traffic and also potential vehicular movement conflicts onto and from 
Waterloo Road, 12th Street and Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current parking that exists on the 
east south side of Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street be restricted and 
designated as permanently prohibited parking. This will make the street safer with 
regards to traffic activities and vehicular movements within the corridor from Waterloo 
Road to Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets so the code will match the proposed limits of the no 
parking along Utility Parkway. Please see the attached changes to City Code Section 
23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval to set 
the newly defined area to prohibit on-street parking. This area is shown on the attached 
exhibit.    
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 

29

Item 6.



 
    

30

Item 6.



31

Item 6.

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Text Box
Current No Parking Limits

WickeD
Arrow

WickeD
Text Box
Proposed Area of Additional Prohibited Parking

WickeD
Arrow



 

 

 

July 29, 2022 

 

Mr. Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

RE:  Utility Parkway – request for No Parking Ordinance 

Dear Ron:  

On July 28, 2022, we discussed CFU’s concerns with traffic activity along Utility Parkway with you and Chase 

Schrage.     

Specifically, we respectfully request the City Council consider a change its street parking ordinance, 

specifically City Code §23‐374, so that parking would be prohibited on both sides of Utility Parkway. 

Currently, the ordinance prohibits parking on the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo 

Road northerly and easterly to the entrance to Washington Park. We would appreciate the prohibition of 

parking on the east side of Utility Parkway from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and easterly to 

the east curb line of Irving Street.  I have spoken with Western Home leadership (a neighboring employer), 

and they have no objections to this request. 

 

Thank you for your assistance, as well as the Council’s consideration.  

Sincerely, 

 
Steven E. Bernard 
General Manager/CEO 

32

Item 6.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Utility Parkway  On the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and 
easterly to the entrance to Washington Park.  

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving Street. 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019) 

33

Item 6.



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3017 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY STRIKING THE SUBSECTION PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON PORTIONS OF UTILITY PARKWAY, AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION PROHIBITING PARKING ON ALL OF UTILITY PARKWAY.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  The unnumbered subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Utility 
Parkway contained in Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 
1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 
Motor Vehicles, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection 
prohibiting parking on both sides of Utility Parkway contained in Section 23-374 is 
enacted, as follows: 

 

            Street                       Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving 
Street. 

 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED:     September 6, 2022    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   September 6, 2022    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

34

Item 6.



MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
Community Center 
September 6, 2022 

 
The meeting of Standing Committees met at the Community Center at 5:15 p.m. on September 6, 2022, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Daryl 
Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City 
Departments and members of the community attended in person.   

Community Development Committee: 

Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Community Development 
Committee agenda, Hearst 2.0 and introduced Matthew Wilson, Treasurer of the Art & Culture Board, 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development and Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural 
Programs Manager. Mr. Wilson gave a brief overview on planning for a Hearst Center expansion and 
enhancing the quality of life in Cedar Falls. Director Sheetz gave an overview of the building condition, 
future needs, summary of timeline, and costs in CIP #48. Ms. Pickar outlined the importance of Hearst 
Engagement, core pillars, summer camps, gallery visits and quality of life. Mr. Wilson stated the Art & 
Culture Board recommends moving forward with RFP’s (Request for Proposal) on the master plan to 
develop a layout of the new facility on Seerley Blvd.  Director Sheetz asked for council approval to move 
forward with a master plan (Included in CIP #77). Councilmembers discussed support of fundraising, 
location of Hearst Center, parking, and performance space. Following comments by Director Sheetz, it 
was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz to proceed with a Hearst Center master plan. The motion 
was put to vote. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay: none. Motion 
carried. 

Chair Harding introduced the second item on the Community Development Committee agenda, 
Destination Iowa Grant Update and introduced Isaiah Corbin, Community Planner II, INRCOG. Mr. Corbin 
gave an overview of the Destination Iowa Grant, anchor projects in each of the city’s (Waterloo/Cedar 
Falls) downtown areas, the goals of the project (promote, elevate, transform, and enhance). The 
Destination Iowa application provides a maximum award per project of 40% with a requested match of 
60%. Costs must be incurred or under contract before December 31, 2024, with projects completed by 
June 30, 2026. The City of Cedar Falls anchor projects include trees & Main Street bridge lighting, West 
1st Street bridge lighting, Center Street bridge lighting and connector projects include updates to Olsen, 
Tourist, Washington, and Island Park. Total costs for Cedar Falls are $566,194 with a local match of 
$339,716. Councilmembers discussed other projects and city funding. Following comments by Cary 
Darrah, President/CEO of Grow Cedar Valley and Mr. Corbin, it was moved by Ganfield and seconded by 
Dunn to direct staff to bring back a resolution of support for the project to be included in the Destination 
Iowa Grant being prepared by INRCOG, to be submitted by the City of Waterloo with the City of Cedar 
Falls as a co-applicant providing a local project match of $339,716. The motion was put to vote.  Aye:  
Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires and Dunn; Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried.      

Public Safety Committee: 

Chair Ganfield introduced the only item on the Public Safety Committee agenda, Orchard Hill Drive Fire 
Response and introduced Craig Berte, Public Safety Director; John Bostwick, Fire Chief; Shea 
McNamara, Public Safety Captain; and Derek Brown, Fire Captain. Director Berte gave an overview of 
the memo provided by Mayor Green that requested a review of the August 18, 2022, structure fire 
response on Orchard Hill Drive and a short presentation. Chief Bostwick stated his involvement in the 
response that included: overview of fire, call back, scene safety, family communication and insurance. 
Captain McNamara stated his involvement in the response that included: overview/360 review of fire, 
entry of house, interior attack of attic fire, extinguishing fire, making the scene safe, remaining on scene in 
case of regrowth of fire, firefighter injury and return to station. Councilmembers discussed improving 
scenes, training, standard operating guidelines and third-party review. Follow-up comments by Captain 
McNamara, Captain Brown, Chief Bostwick and Director Berte included: The Public Safety Department is 
staffed 24 hours per day, public is welcome to a tour or ride-along, monthly trainings, dedicated 
employees, staffing levels and 18 employees responded to the Orchard Hill Drive fire.      

Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

35

Item 7.



36

Item 8.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of Human Rights Commissioners 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §12-27: Human Rights Commission 

  (b) CFD 1201.22b: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a) and my 

process outlined in reference (b), I hereby nominate the following citizens for appointment to 

the Human Rights Commission: 

 

 Ms. Donna Mallin – Term ends 7/1/2023 

 Ms. Julie Kliegl – Term ends 7/1/2023 

 Mr. Robert Wright – Term ends 7/1/2024 

 

2. These three nominees have been interviewed by the Selection Committee and have 

determined them to be the most qualified candidates for appointment; their General 

Applications and Candidate Questionnaires are attached for your consideration. 

 

Encl:  (1) General Application and Candidate Questionnaires for nominees 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Staff Liaison 

 

 
 

### 
 
 
 

37

Item 9.



38

Item 9.



39

Item 9.



40

Item 9.



41

Item 9.



42

Item 9.



43

Item 9.



44

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Art and Culture Board – Member Reappointments 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-133: Art and Culture Board 

  (b) CFD 1201.22b: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a) and my reappointment policy in 

reference (b), I hereby nominate the following members of the Art and Culture Board for 

reappointment for a four-year term expiring on July 1, 2026:  

 

 Ms. Anne Bonsall Hoekstra (Reappointment) 

 Ms. Toni Wilson Wood (Reappointment) 

 

2. These board members have met attendance requirements and have actively been 

contributing to the work of the Board.  I thank them wholeheartedly for their continued 

public service to the people of Cedar Falls. 

 

xc:  City Administrator 

 Director of Community Development 

Visitors, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager 

 

### 

 

45

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  

 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Re-Appointment of Members to Visitors & Tourism Board 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-300 

  (b) CFD 1201.22b: Appointment Process for City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following persons for re-appointment to the Visitors & Tourism Board for an 

three-year terms ending July 1, 2025: 

 

 Ms. Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham (Reappointment) 

 Ms. Amy Dutton (Reappointment) 

 Mr. Doug Johnson (Reappointment) 

 

2. These members have successfully met attendance requirements and have been active 

participants in the deliberations and activities of the board. I thank them wholeheartedly for 

their continued public service to the people of Cedar Falls. 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  Visitors & Tourism Manager 

 

 

### 

 

 

 

 

46

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  

 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   

 220 CLAY STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

  

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Commission Appointment 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §17-166 

  (b) CFD 1201.22b: Mayor’s Appointment Process for Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), and the appointment process of reference 

(b), I hereby nominate Mr. James A. Langel to the Parks and Recreation Commission to fill the 

vacancy of a three-year term ending on June 30, 2025.   

2. Mr. Langel’s application and candidate questionnaire are attached as enclosure (1).   

3. I wish to express appreciation to the Selection Panel for their thoughtful consideration of the 

candidates. Please let me know if you have any questions about this nomination. 

Encl: (1) James Langel General Application and Candidate Questionnaire 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Community Development 

  Recreation and Community Programs Manager 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  September 12, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine- renewal. 

b) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

d) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service – renewal. 

e) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

f) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service – 
change in ownership. 

53

Item 10.



 CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 4600 S. MAIN STREET 

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 319-273-8612 

 www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 

 

 FROM: Craig Berte, Public Safety Director 

 TO: City Council 

 VIA: (1) Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
  (2) Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 DATE: September 9, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Acting Police Chief -- Reappointment 

 

Captain Mark Howard was appointed to serve as the Acting Police Chief on March 14, 

2022, by (then) Acting Public Safety Director Craig Berte in accordance with Section 2-

949 for a period not to exceed 180 days. Berte was appointed to the position of Director 

of Public Safety in accordance with Section 2-920 on June 25th, 2022. Berte resigned 

from the position of Police Chief on this date creating a permanent vacancy in the 

position of Police Chief.  

 

The City is in the process of a search for a new Police Chief and an appointment is 

expected in late October or early November of 2022. Therefore, in accordance with 

Section 2-949 (b) of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, I recommend the Cedar Falls 

City Council re-appoint Captain Mark Howard as the Acting Police Chief for a period not 

to exceed 180 days. 

 
### 

 

54

Item 11.



55

Item 12.



56

Item 12.



57

Item 12.



58

Item 12.



59

Item 12.



60

Item 12.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
FROM:   Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
 
DATE:  September 12, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:   1803 College Street 
  College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan  
                       
As City Council may recall, City staff worked with the College Hill Partnership to develop 
and establish the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (Partial Exemption Taxation) 
based on prior Council guidance and approval. The primary focus of this Plan is to 
promote residential development and preservation by private entities on residential 
properties within the College Hill District. The Plan, which was adopted by the council 
on June 25, 2012, is also intended to stimulate residential conservation, rehabilitation, 
development or redevelopment in the area. 
 
The general boundaries of the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan are Summit Drive, 
Campus Street, College Street (west); 28th Street (south); Franklin Street (east); and 
W. 18th Street (north). 
 
Under the approved Urban Revitalization Plan, a partial exemption of taxation is 
available to residential properties where the improvements increase the actual value of 
the structure by at least 10%. The application must be filed with the City no later than 2 
years after the February 1st following the year the improvements are first assessed. The 
application must be formally approved by the City Council. The partial exemption from 
taxation equal to 100 percent of the actual value added by the improvements for a 
period of five (5) years, and is subject to review by the Black Hawk County Assessor 
after the project is completed.  
 
Panther Builders, LLC is submitting a proposal for completed improvements under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan. The cost of improvements to 1803 College Street 
were estimated at $200,000 and involved remodeling of the existing single-family home, 
including all new electrical, plumbing, HVAC, drywall, and finishes throughout the home.   
 
 
 
 

61

Item 13.



City staff recommends that City Council take the following action: 
 
Adopt a Resolution approving application for tax abatement under the College Hill 
Urban Revitalization Plan for the property located at 1803 College Street. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
                     
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
 
 

62

Item 13.



_̂

Ol
ive

 St

W
aln

ut
St

Iow
a S

t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Campus St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W iscon
sin

St

W 22nd St

Redeker Dr

W 20th St

W 17th St

Ca
mp

us
 S

t

Je
nn

ing
s

Dr

Library
Dr

Iow
a S

t

Columbia Dr

Me
rne

rA
ve

Union Dr

Da
kot

a
St

Ridgeway
Ln

Floral Ct

W 25th St

Su
mm

it D
r Co

tta
ge

 Ln

Co
lle

ge
 St

W 26th St

Mi
ss

ou
ri S

t
W 19th St

University Ave

W Seerley Blvd

W 23rd St

University Ave

W 21st St

W Seerley Blvd

Dr
ury

 Ln

W 18th St

Oh
io 

St

W 23rd St

W 20th St

Su
mm

it D
r

W 28th St

Ca
mp

us
 S

t

W 29th St

W 20th St

Property Location
I

College Hill Urban
Revitalization Area Application
1803 College Street

63

Item 13.



64

Item 13.



65

Item 13.



REMODEL PERMIT 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Phone (319) 268-5161 
Fax (319) 268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc 
PO BOX 128 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
 

Permit Number:   20-4080-REMO Issue Date: October 5, 2020 
 Expiration Date: October 5, 2021 
Permission is hereby given to: 

Applicant:    Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc  
Owner: W J Schultz 

Contractor: Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc 
 
At the following location: 

Address: 1803 College St, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
To be used as:   Single Family Detached Total Area: N/A 
Class of work: Remodel Valuation: $ 140,000.00 

Parcel #: 891414283009 Zoning: R-2 
Legal Description: AUDITOR RAINBOWS PLAT NO 3 CF LOT 13 

 
Description of Work: Remodel single family home. All new electrical, plumbing, and mechanical. 

 
  

Owner Address: 13784 240th St,  
 

Conditions of Approval 
 

1.   The material submitted and the scope of work requires the installation of smoke and carbon monoxide 
detectors in accordance with Sections R314 and R315. Smoke detectors are required to be located on each 
level of the dwelling, in every sleeping room, and immediately outside of any sleeping areas (i.e.: hallway). 
Carbon monoxide detectors are required to be located immediately outside any sleeping areas (i.e.: 
hallway) and in sleeping rooms containing a fuel fired appliance. Existing operable detectors in the required 
locations may remain. Newly installed detectors are required to be dual sensor (photoelectric and 
ionization) or combination smoke/carbon monoxide detectors. All newly installed detectors are also 
required to be interconnected through wiring or radio frequency (RF) interconnection. Exception: Carbon 
Monoxide detectors are not required in dwelling that do not contain fuel fired appliances OR attached 
garages. 

2.   Safety Glass – all glass shall be required to meet the code provisions for Section R308.4 Hazardous Locations 
(check for specific requirements). 

3.   Bathrooms – Bathroom ceiling height shall be no less than 6’8” measured to the lowest projection (See 
Section R305.1 for exceptions). Center toilets in a clear space 30” in width and provide 24” clear space in 
front of the toilet. Exhaust fans are required in bathrooms that do not contain an operable window, connect 
vent directly to the exterior. All walls with plumbing, mechanical, or electrical shall conform to Sections 
R602.6 and R602.6.1 Drilling and Notching of Studs. 

4.   Kitchens – All walls with plumbing, mechanical, or electrical shall conform to Sections R602.6 and R602.6.1 
Drilling and Notching of Studs. 

5.   No modifications to the exit access or exit without prior approval from the Inspection Services Department. 
6.   2015 IRC: Windows: Install replacement windows. No structural changes included. Replacement windows 

cannot reduce the size of a required egress window. Safety glass - all glass shall be required to meet the 
code provisions for Section 2406 Safety Glazing (check for specific requirements). 

 

66

Item 13.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


 

 

 

Failure to identify a City of Cedar Falls Unified Building Code or Municipal Code deficiency during this review does not give the permit 
applicant the right to violate the codes.  The final installation must be in conformance with all applicable codes.   
 
This permit is issued on the express condition that the above work shall conform in all respects to the statements certified to in the 
application for such permit, and that all work shall be done in accordance with all applicable zoning, building, electrical, land use, 
excavating, plumbing, mechanical, sidewalk and fire ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls and the State of Iowa.  FAILURE TO IDENTIFY A 
CODE DEFICIENTY DURING THIS REVIEW OF THE APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT DOES NOT GIVE THE PERMIT APPLICANT THE RIGHT TO 
VIOLATE THE CODES.  THE FINAL INSTALLATION MUST BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CODES.  By paying the permit fee and receiving 
this permit, Licensed Contractor/Owner further certifies that Licensed Contractor/Owner has read and understands the requirements of 
this permit and that all statements made by Licensed Contractor/Owner in securing this permit are true and complete to the best of the 
Licensed Contractor/Owner knowledge. 
 
TOTAL FEES:  $1,268.75 
 

To check permit status visit www.CF1Stop.com 

67

Item 13.

http://www.cf1stop.com/


ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
FROM:   Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 
 
DATE:  September 12, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:   1809 College Street 
  College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan  
                       
As City Council may recall, City staff worked with the College Hill Partnership to develop 
and establish the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (Partial Exemption Taxation) 
based on prior Council guidance and approval. The primary focus of this Plan is to 
promote residential development and preservation by private entities on residential 
properties within the College Hill District. The Plan, which was adopted by the council 
on June 25, 2012, is also intended to stimulate residential conservation, rehabilitation, 
development or redevelopment in the area. 
 
The general boundaries of the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan are Summit Drive, 
Campus Street, College Street (west); 28th Street (south); Franklin Street (east); and 
W. 18th Street (north). 
 
Under the approved Urban Revitalization Plan, a partial exemption of taxation is 
available to residential properties where the improvements increase the actual value of 
the structure by at least 10%. The application must be filed with the City no later than 2 
years after the February 1st following the year the improvements are first assessed. The 
application must be formally approved by the City Council. The partial exemption from 
taxation equal to 100 percent of the actual value added by the improvements for a 
period of five (5) years, and is subject to review by the Black Hawk County Assessor 
after the project is completed.  
 
CV Commercial, LLC is submitting a proposal for completed improvements under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan. The cost of improvements to 1809 College Street 
were estimated at $165,000 and involved construction of a new single-family home on a 
previously vacant lot.   
 
 
 
 

68

Item 14.



City staff recommends that City Council take the following action: 
 
Adopt a Resolution approving application for tax abatement under the College Hill 
Urban Revitalization Plan for the property located at 1809 College Street. 
 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 
 
                     
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
 
 

69

Item 14.



_̂

Ol
ive

 St

W
aln

ut
St

Iow
a S

t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Campus St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

W iscon
sin

St

W 22nd St

Redeker Dr

W 20th St

W 17th St

Ca
mp

us
 S

t

Je
nn

ing
s

Dr

Library
Dr

Iow
a S

t

Columbia Dr

Me
rne

rA
ve

Union Dr

Da
kot

a
St

Ridgeway
Ln

Floral Ct

W 25th St

Su
mm

it D
r Co

tta
ge

 Ln

Co
lle

ge
 St

W 26th St

Mi
ss

ou
ri S

t
W 19th St

University Ave

W Seerley Blvd

W 23rd St

University Ave

W 21st St

W Seerley Blvd

Dr
ury

 Ln

W 18th St

Oh
io 

St

W 23rd St

W 20th St

Su
mm

it D
r

W 28th St

Ca
mp

us
 S

t

W 29th St

W 20th St

Property Location
I

College Hill Urban
Revitalization Area Application
1809 College Street

70

Item 14.



APPLICATION FOR TAX ABATEMENT UNDER THE 

COLLEGE HILL URBAN REVITALIZATION PLAN FOR 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   

 

_____ Prior Approval for Intended Improvements   _____ Approval of Improvements Completed 

 

FOR PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION FOR IMPROVEMENTS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE COLLEGE HILL 

URBAN REVITALIZATION PLAN ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   

 

The College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan allows property tax exemptions on improvements to property located within its 

boundaries that meet the following criteria: 

1. At least a 10% increase to the value of residential property or commercial property if the commercial property consists of 

3 or more separate living quarters with at least 75% of the space used for residential purposes (buildings only).   

2. Be located within the Area boundaries.  (A map of which can be obtained from the City of Cedar Falls Community 

Development Department). 

3. Must be filed with the City by February 1 of the assessment year for which the exemption is first claimed, but not later 

than 2 years after the February 1
st
 following the year that the improvements are first assessed for taxation.*  

 

Address of Property: _________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Legal Description: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Title Holder or Contract Buyer: ______________________________________________ 

 

Address of Owner (if different than above): ____________________________________ 

 

Phone Number (to be reached during the day): ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Is there a Tenant on the Property that will be displaced by the Improvements who has occupied the same dwelling unit 

continuously for 1 year prior to ________ [insert date of adoption of the Plan]?  Yes ___ No ___ 

  

 

Existing Property Use:  ___ Residential ___ Commercial ___ Industrial ___ Vacant 

 

Proposed Property Use: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Nature of Improvements:  __ New Construction __ Addition __ General Improvements 

 

Specify:  ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Permit Number(s) from the City of Cedar Falls Inspection Services:  _________________________________________________ 

 Date Permit(s) Issued:  _________________________ 

 Permit(s) Valuation:   _________________________ [Attach approved Building Permit to this application] 

 

Estimated or Actual Date of Completion:  _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated or Actual Cost of Improvements:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

       Signature:  ____________________________________________ 

 

       Name (Printed) ________________________________________ 

        

Title: ____________________________________________ 

 

       Company:  ___________________________________________ 

 

       Date: _______________________    

 

 

1809 College Street, Cedar Falls Iowa 50613

Lot 14 -AUDITOR RAINBOWS PLAT NO 3 CF- 8914-14-283-010

CV COMMERCIAL LLC
PO BOX 128  Cedar Falls Iowa 50613

515-867-7000

X

X

residential

X

new construction -ranch-stick build home

1/15/2020

165,000

Brent Dahlstrom

owner/manager

CV COMMERCIAL LLC
8/19/2019

X

71

Item 14.



FOR CITY USE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY 

COUNCIL 

Application Approved/Disapproved  

 

Reason (if disapproved)  

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date ____________________ Resolution No. ____________________ 

 

Attested by the City Clerk _____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

ASSESSOR 

 

Present Assessed Value of Structure _______________________________________ 

 

Assessed Value with Improvements ______________________________ 

 

Eligible or Non-eligible for Tax Abatement ________________________ 

 

Assessor _____________________________ Date __________________ 

 
 

* Example:  To receive a full 5 year exemption on Improvements that were first fully assessed on 1-1-2014, the property owner 

must file the application with the City no later than 2-1-2016. 
 

This Application is a summary of some of the Plan terms; for complete information, read a copy of COLLEGE HILL URBAN 

REVITALIZATION PLAN, available at the City Clerk’s Office, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa or on-line at 

www.cedarfalls.com. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  ATTACH YOUR APPROVED BUILDING PERMIT TO THIS 

APPLICATION 
 

 
00856071-1\10283-105 

 

72

Item 14.



NEW BUILDING PERMIT 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Phone (319) 268-5161 
Fax (319) 268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc 
PO BOX 128 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
 

Permit Number:   19-3937-NEWB Issue Date: February 4, 2020 
 Expiration Date: February 4, 2021 
Permission is hereby given to: 

Applicant:    Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc  
Owner: CV Commercial LLC 

Contractor: Dahlstrom Real Estate Inc 
 
At the following location: 

Address: 1809 College St, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
To be used as:   Single Family Detached Total Area: 715 ft² 
Class of work: New Building Valuation: $ 120,000.00 

Parcel #: 891414283010 Zoning: R-2 
Legal Description: AUDITOR RAINBOWS PLAT NO 3 CF LOT 14 

 
Description of Work: 2015 IRC:  Construct new 1 story single family residential dwelling on a full continuous 

frost protected foundation.  Main floor consisting of 715 sq. ft. to include 2 rooms; 1 
bedroom, 1 bathroom, kitchen, dining room, living room, and entry.  No garage No 
deck No basement Please make sure to check all areas that may require safety glass. 

 

  
Owner Address: PO Box 128, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

Conditions of Approval 
 

1.   Dwelling is required to meet the Energy Code per CFU.  NPDES GP#2 top soil requirement and inspection 
required.  See further requirements. 

 
Failure to identify a City of Cedar Falls Unified Building Code or Municipal Code deficiency during this review does not give the permit 
applicant the right to violate the codes.  The final installation must be in conformance with all applicable codes.   
 
This permit is issued on the express condition that the above work shall conform in all respects to the statements certified to in the 
application for such permit, and that all work shall be done in accordance with all applicable zoning, building, electrical, land use, 
excavating, plumbing, mechanical, sidewalk and fire ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls and the State of Iowa.  FAILURE TO IDENTIFY A 
CODE DEFICIENTY DURING THIS REVIEW OF THE APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT DOES NOT GIVE THE PERMIT APPLICANT THE RIGHT TO 
VIOLATE THE CODES.  THE FINAL INSTALLATION MUST BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CODES.  By paying the permit fee and receiving 
this permit, Licensed Contractor/Owner further certifies that Licensed Contractor/Owner has read and understands the requirements of 
this permit and that all statements made by Licensed Contractor/Owner in securing this permit are true and complete to the best of the 
Licensed Contractor/Owner knowledge. 
 
TOTAL FEES:  $1,169.75 
 

To check permit status visit www.CF1Stop.com 

73

Item 14.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/
http://www.cf1stop.com/


DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5528 
Fax: 319-273-8656 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation & Community Programs Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Mike Soppe, Manager 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Ostby Dance Contract   
   
   
 
Attached you will find the Professional Goods and Services Agreement with Ostby 
Dance.  They are the couple that comes into the Rec Center and teach a four-week 
Ballroom Dance class.  They have been instructing this class the previous five years.  
 
 
The Ostby’s come highly recommended and usually have a wait list to sign up for their 
class. The Recreation & Community Programs Manager recommends approving this 
contract.  
 
   
 
   

 

74

Item 15.



75

Item 15.



76

Item 15.



77

Item 15.



78

Item 15.



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

To instruct beginner Ballroom Dance for a class of twenty to thirty participants in the Rec 

Center. This class is a four-week course that meets once a week for an hour and a half in the evening. 

They would offer this class once in the fall and once in the spring, as scheduled by the Rec staff.  Classes 

will be held in Fit Gym at the Rec. 

 

 

  

79

Item 15.



Exhibit B 

Payment 

Upon completion of the four-week course the City receives a 20% split of their enrollment fees. 

They sign up for this class by registering online or calling into the Rec. The City uses Civic Rec to track 

enrollment. For this percentage the City offers the room for class, advertises on behalf of the class, and 

handles the registering of the participants.  The City will pay the contractor their portion within 30 days 

of the class completion. 

80

Item 15.



BID CMP 1001 01 18 Page 1 of 2

American Family Insurance - Business Insurance
Underwritten by: Midvale Indemnity Company
A Wisconsin Stock Company

Send policy correspondence to: Brenda Holzer
PO Box 5316
Binghamton,NY 13902
(866) 908-0626

515 MAIN ST STE B
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
(319) 277-2056

Information as of: 09/15/2022

POLICY DECLARATIONS

This document and your policy contract define our insuring agreement.  In return for payment of premium and 
subject to all the terms of this policy, we agree to provide you insurance as stated in the policy.

Policy Information

Named Insured: Steven Ostby Policy Number: CP00004203

E-mail Address: wheedance@gmail.com Policy Type: Commercial General Liability

Phone: Policy Period: 09/15/2022 to 09/15/2023 12:01AM 
Standard Time at Primary Location

Policy Level Coverage (limits & deductibles shown are non-stackable across locations)

General Liability
Limit

Per Occurrence Limit $1,000,000
General Aggregate Limit (other than products/completed operations) $2,000,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate limit $2,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury limit $1,000,000
Damage to Premises Rented to You (limit per premises) $100,000
Medical Payments (limit per person) $5,000

Deductible
Liability Property Damage Deductible $500

81

Item 15.



BID CMP 1001 01 18 Page 2 of 2

Discounts Applied to This Policy

Full-Pay
Loss-Free
Marketing Source
Responsible Shopper

Policy Forms and Endorsements

CG 24 04 05 09 WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US

In witness whereof, we have caused this policy to be signed by our authorized officers. 

Home Office
MIDVALE INDEMNITY COMPANY
6000 American Parkway
Madison, WI  53783

Tony Desantis, Jr. David Holman 
President       Secretary

82

Item 15.



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 09/07/2022
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 
THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACT

NAME: American Family Insurance - Business Insurance
PHONE FAX

(A/C, No, Ext): (866) 908-0626 (A/C, No):

E-MAIL

ADDRESS: service@amfambusinessinsurance.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

  PRODUCER

Brenda Holzer
515 MAIN ST STE B
CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
(319) 277-2056
bholzer@amfam.com

INSURER A : Midvale Indemnity Company 27138
INSURER B :

INSURER C :

  INSURER D :

INSURER E :

  INSURED

 Steven Ostby
1415 Washington St 

  Cedar Falls IA 50613

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 00001657588183 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. 
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE 
ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF 
SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF
INSURANCE POLICY NUMBERLTR INSR WVD (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

LIMITS

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
N CP00004203 09/15/2022 09/15/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-
MADE

 X
OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
$1,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

PRO- PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000
X POLICY

JECT
LOC

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT  
(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED AUTOS 
ONLY SCHEDULED AUTOS BODILY INJURY(Per accident)

HIRED AUTOS 
ONLY

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

PROPERTY DAMAGE  
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB   OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
 AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N STATUTE ER
 ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECU
 -TIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

 (Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA

If yes, describe under
 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY  OCCURRENCE
 AGGREGATE

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Dance Instructor, School or Studio

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

 SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED   
 BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

  AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

N

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

83

Item 15.



POLICY NUMBER: CP00004203 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24 04 05 09

CG 24 04 05 09 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2008 Page 1 of 1

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY 
AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person Or Organization: 

City of Cedar Falls

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of 
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of 

–  Section IV Conditions:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against 
the person or organization shown in the Schedule 
above because of payments we make for injury or 
damage arising out of your ongoing operations or 
"your work" done under a contract with that person or 
organization and included in the "products-completed 
operations hazard". This waiver applies only to the 
person or organization shown in the Schedule above.

84

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: September 7, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Intent to Apply for an Iowa Tourism Grant 

 

The Iowa Tourism Grant (ITG) Program promotes tourism in Iowa by funding tourism-related 
marketing initiatives, meetings and events that benefit both local economies and the state's 
economy. ITG awards range from $2,500 to $10,000 and require a 25 percent cash match.  The 
Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau plans to apply at the $10,000 level for the following: 
 

 Cedar Falls Pocket Guide & Information Kiosks: As the 2023 Cedar Falls Waterloo Visitor 
Guide transforms into an inspiration guide with fewer pages for more cost-effective 
mailing and distribution, we are seeking funds to create a Cedar Falls specific pocket 
guide. The Cedar Falls pocket guide will provide a small hand-held print piece that easily 
fits into a purse or pocket for visitors already in market. The pocket guide will provide 
detailed information about Cedar Falls restaurants, attractions, and entertainment 
options. This will be used with convention and sporting groups, and at our local hotels 
and venues. We are also seeking funding to purchase mobile kiosks for our meeting 
venues to provide an easy and attractive way to distribute local information to our 
visitors upon their arrival. 
 

The application is due September 28, 2022. If awarded, funds may be used January 1 – 
December 31, 2023. The matching funds are accounted for in our current budget. 
 
If you have any questions about our application, please feel free to contact me. 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 

85

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE:  September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Grant Application: Destination Iowa 

 
At the September 6, 2022 Community Development Committee meeting, INRCOG and 
Grow Cedar Valley presented a proposal for application to the Iowa Economic 
Development Administration (IEDA) through the State of Iowa’s American Rescue Plan 
Act funds (ARPA) for a Destination Iowa grant. 
 
The project includes both Waterloo and Cedar Falls components, which are listed in the 
attached document along with their estimated costs.   Project components include both 
anchor and connector projects. The Cedar Falls anchor project includes Trees & Main 
Street Bridge lighting, W 1st Street Bridge lighting, Center Street Bridge Lighting as the 
anchor projects. The connector projects include updates to Olsen, Tourist, Washington, 
and Island Park, primarily focused on recommendations in the 2022 Black Hawk County 
Water Trails Master Plan. Anchor projects focus on recommendations in the draft Cedar 
Valley River Experience. 
 
The total costs for Cedar Falls are $566,194.  A 60% local match is required which can 
include City, County or other private funds (such as local grants).  The application would 
be submitted as one application, with City of Waterloo as the lead and Cedar Falls as a 
co-applicant.  The Destination Iowa application provides a maximum award per project 
of 40% with a requested match of 60%. Costs must be incurred or under contract before 
December 31, 2024, with projects completed by June 30, 2026. 
 
Attached are two resolutions requested for approval:  

1. Resolution Approving the Application and designating the Mayor as the official 
representative. 

2. Resolution of Financial Assurance, for the Cedar Falls match requirement. 
 
For questions, please contact Cary Darrah at cary@growcedarvalley.com or Isaiah 
Corbin at icorbin@inrcog.org. 
 
Attached:  Cedar Valley Destination Iowa Project List 

86

Item 17.

https://www.iowadnr.gov/Portals/idnr/uploads/riverprograms/plans/wtplan_blackhawk.pdf
https://www.iowadnr.gov/Portals/idnr/uploads/riverprograms/plans/wtplan_blackhawk.pdf
http://www.inrcog.org/pdf/Cedar_Valley_River_Experience_Vision_Draft.pdf
http://www.inrcog.org/pdf/Cedar_Valley_River_Experience_Vision_Draft.pdf
mailto:cary@growcedarvalley.com
mailto:icorbin@inrcog.org


Destination Iowa Grant Project List - Cedar Valley River Experience

Projects Estimated Cost 

Anchor Projects 

Waterloo Whitewater Park* 11,348,536$              

Trees and Main St, Center St, & W 1st St Bridge Lighting 329,000$                    

Subtotal for Anchor Projects 11,677,536$              

Waterloo Connector Projects 20% Inflation Adjus.

Cedar Park Bend  173,994$                    

Pioneer Park 131,048$                    

Riverview Recreation Area 91,469$                      

River Road Improvements 474,204$                    

River Road Deere Improvements  (Match) 1,000,000$                 

San Souci Island Master Plan 150,000$                    

Design & Engineering for Connector Construction Projects (20%) 79,302$                      

Contingency (20%) 79,302$                      

Subtotal for Waterloo Connector Projects 2,179,320$                

Cedar Falls Connector Projects 20% Inflation Adjus.

Olsen Park 54,606$                      

Tourist Park 20,477$                      

Washington Park 44,270$                      

Island Park 50,071$                      

Design & Engineering for Connector Construction Projects (20%) 33,885$                      

Contingency (20%) 33,885$                      

Subtotal for Cedar Falls Connector Projects 237,194$                    

Subtotal for Connector Projects 2,416,514$                

TOTAL FOR ALL PROJECTS 14,094,050$              

60% Total Match - Total Project 8,456,430$                 

40% Total Request - Total Project 5,637,620$                 

Waterloo Total 13,527,856$              

Waterloo 60% Match 8,116,713$                 

Waterloo 40% Request 5,411,142$                 

87

Item 17.



Jurisdiction

$11.3M inlcudes design & CRS Waterloo 

Cedar Falls 

2018 Estimates

144,995$                                                     Waterloo 

109,207$                                                     Waterloo 

76,224$                                                       Waterloo 

cost includes design & contingency Waterloo V&A estimate source / includes 20% contingency & 15% design

Waterloo Deere Cost Estimates 

Waterloo V&A estimate source

Waterloo 

Waterloo 

2018 Estimates

45,505$                                                       Cedar Falls 

17,064$                                                       Cedar Falls 

36,892$                                                       Cedar Falls 

41,726$                                                       Cedar Falls 

Cedar Falls 

Cedar Falls 

Cedar Falls Total 566,194$                              

Cedar Falls 60% Match 339,716$                              

Cedar Falls 40% Request 226,478$                              

88

Item 17.



V&A estimate source / includes 20% contingency & 15% design

89

Item 17.



RESOLUTION NUMBER    
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA APPROVING A 
DESTINATION IOWA GRANT APPLICATION; DESIGNATING THE MAYOR AS THE 
OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CITY AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO AFFIX HIS 
SIGNATURE TO SAID APPLICATION AND CERTAIN ASSURANCES IN CONJUNCTION 
WITH SAME. 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to avail 
itself of financial assistance through the Destination Iowa Program as administered by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority; 
 
WHEREAS, the City is seeking assistance for the Cedar Valley River Experience Project; 
 
WHEREAS, the Destination Iowa Grant application best addresses the needs of the City;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls and the City of Waterloo are partnering on the grant 
application and project;  
 
WHEREAS, the application will only be submitted if both the City of Cedar Falls and Waterloo 
approve of the application;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as 
follows: 
 

1. The Destination Iowa Grant application is hereby approved. 
 
2. The Mayor is hereby designated as the official representative of the City and is 

further hereby directed and authorized to affix their signature to said application 
and certain Federal and State assurances in conjunction with same. 

 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of_____________, 2022. 
 
 
 
       ________________________                         
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________                                                        
Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90

Item 17.



RESOLUTION NUMBER      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA GRANTING THE IOWA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSURANCES IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH THE DESTINATION IOWA GRANT APPLICATION. 
 
WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of the project is $14,044,050 for the Cedar Valley River 
Experience Project;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls and City of Waterloo are applying for $5,617,620 in 
Destination Iowa grant funding assistance for this project; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls portion of the project is estimated to be $566,194; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls will match the portion of the Destination Iowa grant request 
relative to Cedar Falls projects with up to 60% local funds which may include City, County, or 
private fundraising; 
 
WHEREAS, said Program funds are part of the Destination Iowa funds provided to the State of Iowa 
through the American Rescue Plan; 
 
WHEREAS, this project was identified as part of the Black Hawk County Water Trails Master Plan 
and Cedar Valley Placemaking Study; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa that 
60% local matching funds are herewith committed toward this project. 
 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      ________________________                                     
      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________                                                            
Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 
    
 
 

91

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

  Ben Claypool, PE, Engineer 

 DATE: September 12, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant Application – Removal of 

Rail Spur to Cedar Falls Utilities  

 
The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) has issued a notice of funding opportunity 
for the elimination of railroad crossings where they may fund up to 80% of the project 
(20% minimum match required). This opportunity was brought to the City’s attention by 
the Iowa Northern Railway Company (IANR). IANR has some decisions to make 
regarding the fate of the CFU Spur that runs through Cedar Falls Downtown. The line 
has been retained by IANR on behalf of CFU for the primary purpose of delivery of coal 
to CFU. IANR’s last coal delivery to CFU took place in mid-2010 and IANR has not 
received any revenue from the Cedar Falls Spur for its intended use since that time. 
Therefore, IANR is considering the following options: 

1. Find a new rail served customer to locate on the Spur that would produce the 
required revenue to offset the cost of maintenance and produce a respectable 
profit. This option would require a substantial increase in rail traffic through the 
city and is unlikely to occur. 

2. Abandonment, removal of rail line, and sale of the right-of-way to interested 
parties for reasonable consideration of the value of the assets. 

3. Abandonment, removal of the rail line, and sale of the right-of-way to the City of 
Cedar Falls, and relocation of the railroad assets utilizing the new FRA Railroad 
Crossing Elimination Grant Program. Relocating IANR’s rail assets to a more 
suitable location for rail operations. IANR is willing to be the City’s Project 
Partner, contributing a match of 10%, half of the City’s 20% match for FRA’s 
80% grant opportunity. 

 

The first option is the least desirable of the three as more frequent rail traffic in 
downtown can get very disruptive to commerce, operation of schools, public safety, and 
general operations of the City of Cedar Falls. City employees that were around for the 
last coal delivery in 2010 recall many problems and complaints regarding the long line 
of train cars which isolated downtown for a significant amount of time. Likewise, option 
#2 is less than desirable as the City would not be in control of the disposition of the 

92

Item 19.



assets and federal funding assistance for street restoration may not be available as it 
would be with option #3. 
 
Assuming the City is awarded the grant, the third option is the optimal choice of the 
three as IANR is willing to pay half of the match (10% of the total project cost) as a 
project partner and the grant would significantly reduce the financial burden of projects 
that would otherwise become part of our capital improvements plan including the 
reconstruction/streetscape of 5th Street which the rail line traverses. In line with the 
purpose of the grant, the project would eliminate 24 total crossings in and adjacent to 
downtown Cedar Falls which would provide safety benefits for pedestrian and auto 
traffic. The City would also gain control of right of way and lands that may be ideal for 
redevelopment in line with the Downtown Plan. 
 
The below graphic shows the context of the grant project in relation to Cedar Falls 
Downtown and CFU. 
 

 
 
The following is a list of items that the project would entail: 

 Removal of the Rail Asset - IANR will remove and relocate approximately 
11,642 lineal feet of railroad track to a safer and more efficient site located outside 
of Cedar Falls. At present, the rail is considered a trapped asset and IANR needs 

93

Item 19.



more capacity for their operations. This would free up that capacity to be used 
elsewhere without disruption to the City. 

 Landscape and Temporary Street Restoration - Immediately following each 
phase of rail asset removal, the City of Cedar Falls will restore landscaping and 
temporarily pave the affected streets with asphalt. This ensures the functionality 
of streets until necessary traffic considerations are accounted for and the proper 
reconstruction can be performed in logical phases. 

 Permanent Street Restoration - The permanent street restoration after removal 
of the rail asset will require careful planning and logistical considerations. The full 
restoration of streets will be performed after the City of Cedar Falls determines a 
reasonable method and timeline for closure of streets and other anticipated 
challenges. As with other similar projects, it is anticipated that any independent 
portion of street restoration may cause up to a six-week street closure to 
complete.  

 Permanent Closure of Floodwall - There is an 
open floodwall which the CFU Spur crosses at the 
east edge of downtown close to the corner of East 
7th and Grove Street. It currently requires temporary 
closure when the Cedar River floods. The City of 
Cedar Falls is planning permanent closure of that 
floodwall as part of this project. This closure is a 
necessary step as the current method of temporary closure is made to account 
for the rail line. If not permanently closed, another method of closure (temporary 
and/or permanent) would need to be engineered. 

 Creation of Trail Connection Over Rail/Spur Bridge - This trail connection 
toward the end of the spur would connect South Riverside Trail and the Grand 
Boulevard Neighborhood to downtown. This would utilize an existing rail/spur 
bridge (pictured below) that would be ideal for pedestrian and bicycle use after 
rail removal and refurbishing for that purpose. The current route to downtown from 
the neighborhood to the south is fairly indirect and has some concerning conflict 
points which have been discussed at length by the Cedar Falls Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee. For reference, below is a map showing the 
currently paved trails as dashed lines and the proposed trail connection in solid 
yellow which would encompass approximately 1700 linear feet of new paved trail. 
The red dashed line is the detour people currently use to get into downtown. The 
proposed trail addition would also seamlessly connect Pfeiffer Springs Park to 
Washington Park, and more broadly would complete a cohesive loop that already 
connects our South Riverside Trail with our North Riverside trail. These are 
regional trails that connect Cedar Falls to George Wyth State Park and the City 
of Waterloo. They also connect to the Cedar Valley Nature Trail which connects 
Cedar Falls to Cedar Rapids. The proposed connection and the resulting 
continuity will create a much more welcoming entrance to downtown and will be 
a recreational gem. 

94

Item 19.



 
The total project cost is estimated to be $12,200,000. This total reflects all costs 
involved with abandoning the CFU spur, purchase of the right-of way, removal of the 
tracks, signals, and crossings, the restoration/reconstruction of the impacted streets, 
sidewalks, curbs, and landscaping (including engineering design, survey, and 
inspection), as well as all costs for the relocated rail yard near Shell Rock, IA. Of the 
$12,200,000, the City improvements via reconstruction/restoration are estimated to cost 
approximately $5,300,000. With the funding structure of the grant, 80% of the 
$12,200,000 would be federally funded, and the remaining $2,440,000 would be split 
50/50 via a cost-sharing partnership between Cedar Falls and IANR. The intended 
funding breakdown for this project is outlined below:   

City of Cedar Falls    $ 1,220,000 
Iowa Northern Railway Co.   $ 1,220,000 
RCE Grant     $ 9,760,000 
Total:     $12,200,000 

 
The sources of funding from the City will be determined in a subsequent capital 
improvements plan (CIP) but are anticipated to be primarily from Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) and Local Option Sales Tax (LOST). If the grant is received a contract 
for the design and work to be performed will be brought before Council at a later date. 
 
In order to submit the grant, a letter of support and a funding commitment letter are 
needed from Council to submit with the grant.  The Federal Railroad Administration 
requires that we submit by October 4th.  We would anticipate a notification of intent to 
award by March 2023.  Staff recommends submitting a request for $9,760,000 in grant 
funding through the Railroad Crossing Elimination Grant Program.  Staff recommends 
approval of resolutions for the following items related to the grant application: 

95

Item 19.



1. Support of submitting the application for the RCE grant. 
2. Financial assurances for the project. 

 

 

 

   
Attachment: Letter of Support from IANR 

  
xc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 Karen Howard, Planning Manager 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

96

Item 19.



1

Chris Sevy

From: William Magee <wmagee@iowanorthern.com>
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2022 4:55 PM
To: Chris Sevy
Cc: Ron Gaines; Benjamin Claypool; Dan Sabin
Subject: Letter of Support for Cedar Falls Rail Crossing Elimination Grant Application

CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Mr. Sevy: 
 
As you are aware, Iowa Northern Railway Company brought the recently announced Notice of Funding Opportunity 
issued by the Federal Railroad Administration to the attention of the City of Cedar Falls as a potential means by which to 
make very significant safety improvements to the downtown Cedar Falls area by abandoning and removing the Cedar 
Falls Rail Spur and relocating the rail assets to another location. We have been working collaboratively with City staff for 
the past several weeks to compile the information needed to submit a successful application to the Federal Railroad 
Administration. 
 
This improvement can be viewed as a win-win by both the City of Cedar Falls and the Iowa Northern Railway Company. 
Iowa Northern Railway Company is in full support of this project and is willing to participate as a Project Partner with the 
City of Cedar Falls. We are prepared to commit 10% of the required 20% matching funds, or an estimated $1.2 million to 
this project.  
 
IANR believes that this improvement is in the best interest of Rail Safety, Cedar Falls, and the Iowa Northern Railway 
Company.  We are happy to be a Project Partner for this very worthy improvement.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
William L. Magee 
General Manager 
 

Iowa Northern Railway Company 
201 Tower Park Drive 
Waterloo, Iowa 50701 
 
Office :319-888-7063 
Cell: 319-415-7293 
Email: wmagee@iowanorthern.com 
 

 
 
 

97

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: September 13, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project   
  City Project Number: SW-000-3293 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Iowa Flatworks, Inc. for the construction of the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project.  
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. 
The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess 
the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been completed, the 
Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice 
to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the 
bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner fails to pay the bill in 30 
days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ property taxes and spread 
over 5 years with interest. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Iowa Flatworks, Inc. for the construction of the 2022 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

98

Item 20.



99

Item 20.



100

Item 20.



101

Item 20.



102

Item 20.



103

Item 20.



104

Item 20.



105

Item 20.



106

Item 20.



107

Item 20.



108

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: September 12, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3240 
   Final Acceptance  
 
The W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance. This project involved 1,600 linear feet of sanitary sewer placement to extend 
sanitary sewer service prior the West 27th Street Reconstruction project. The sewer 
extension will service the proposed Cedar Falls High School site along with future 
residential development north of West 27th Street and East of Union Road. This project 
was under contract with Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc. of Alburnett, Iowa. Attached please 
find the following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
  -  Final Breakdown of Costs 
   -  Maintenance Bond, Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc.  
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division, and 
are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

(Insert contractor name) Suppliers: 
BMC Aggregates LC 
Contractor Solutions 
Forterra Pipe and Precast 
Start Equipment Ltd. 
Care & Main LP 

(Insert contractor name) subcontractors: 
Ace Concrete Cutting, LLC 
Ken-Way Trucking 
Quantum Land Design Co. 
Service Signing L.C 
Soil Concepts, Inc 
Weikert Contracting, Inc 
Schimberg Co. 
Martinez Concrete, LLC 
Quam Trucking 
 

109

Item 21.



This project was funded by the Sewer Bond fund. 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Sanitary Sewer Bond Fund  $289,159.78 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension 
Project are completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Benjamin Claypool, PhD, EI  Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

9/12/22 

110

Item 21.



Retainage Release

04/28/22  to 05/18/22 Application Date: 05/20/22

Project Number: Via (Engineer): Matthew Tolan

11/24/21 Civil Engineer II

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 265,163.35$                                                                   

Additions (a) Deductions (b)

7,700.00$                   -$                             2. NET CHANGE BY CHANGE ORDERS ( c ) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 13,409.24$                                                                     

5,709.24$                   -$                             

-$                             -$                             3. CURRENT CONTRACT PRICE .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 278,572.59$                                                                   

-$                             -$                             

-$                             -$                             4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE

-$                             -$                             (Total Column F on Progress Estimate) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 288,119.43$                                                                   

-$                             -$                             

-$                             -$                             5. RETAINAGE

-$                             -$                             a. 0%      x Work Completed   .   .   -$                                                                                 

-$                             -$                             b. 5%      x Stored Materials   .   . -$                                                                                 

-$                             -$                             c. Total Retainage (Line 5a + Line 5b) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . -$                                                                                 

-$                             -$                             

-$                             -$                             6. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CHARGED THIS APPLICATION

-$                             -$                             0 Days      x Per Day   .   .   .   .   .   . -$                                                                                 

-$                             -$                             

13,409.24$                 -$                             7. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5c - Line 6) .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 288,119.43$                                                                   

8. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 7 From Prior Application)  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 273,713.46$                                                                   

9. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION 14,405.97$                                                                     

10. BALANCE TO DATE, PLUS RETAINAGE (Line 7 + Line 5c)   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 288,119.43$                                                                   

11. % OF COMPLETION

Original Contract Price (Line 10 ÷ Line 1) 109%

Current Contract Price (Line 10 ÷ Line 3) 103%

(Line 9 or Other: Attach Explanation if Other Amount)

    ________________________________

Date: 
Date

Contractor's Certification

The undersigned Contractor certifies that: (1) all previous progress payments

received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been

applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in

connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment; (2) title of all

Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or

covered by this Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free

and clear of all LIens, security interests and encumbrances (except such are covered

by a Bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against such Liens, security

interest or encumbrances); and (3) all Work covered by this Application for Payment

is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective.

By (Conctractor):

13

14

15

Totals

(a) + (b) = ( c )

Net Change by Change Orders

13,409.24$                                                         

12

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

From (Contractor): Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc.

City of Cedar Falls

Application Period:

RC-000-3240 To (Owner):

CONTRACTOR'S                   

APPLICATION                                         

FOR PAYMENT

Pay Application

Daulton Gerber

Payment of: 14,405.97$                                        

Is Respectufully Submitted:

Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II

288,119.43$                              

-$                                            

1,000.00$                                  

W. 27TH ST SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION

Contract Completion Date:

Change Order Summary

Approved Change Orders:

Number

Daulton Gerber
Digitally signed by Daulton Gerber
DN: C=US, E=ddgerber@pirctobin.com, O=Pirc-Tobin Construction, CN=Daulton 
Gerber
Reason: I agree to the terms defined by the placement of my signature on this 
document
Date: 2022.05.20 15:30:51-05'00'

111

Item 21.

Daulton_Gerber
Typewritten Text
5-20-22

ArmstrongB
PowerPoint Presentation

ArmstrongB
Text Box
5/20/2022



No. Retainage Release

to

Project Number:

Contract Completion Date: 11/24/21

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Bid                                                                   

Item                                   

Number

Description Unit

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE 0.70 5,000.00$          3,500.00$          0.70 -                      -$                    0.70 3,500.00$          -$                       3,500.00$          100% -$                    X

2 STRIP, SALVAGE, AND RESPREAD TOPSOIL CY 3,580.00 3.00$                  10,740.00$        3,580.00 -                      -$                    3,580.00 10,740.00$        -$                       10,740.00$        100% -$                    X

3 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 INCH SY 251.00 4.00$                  1,004.00$          251.00 -                      -$                    251.00 1,004.00$          -$                       1,004.00$          100% -$                    X

4 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 6 INCH SY 251.00 10.00$                2,510.00$          502.00 -                      -$                    502.00 5,020.00$          -$                       5,020.00$          200% (2,510.00)$         X

5 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL CY 100.00 60.00$                6,000.00$          80.00 -                      -$                    80.00 4,800.00$          -$                       4,800.00$          80% 1,200.00$          X

6 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 8 INCH LF 8.00 125.00$              1,000.00$          8.00 -                      -$                    8.00 1,000.00$          -$                       1,000.00$          100% -$                    X

7 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 12 INCH LF 8.00 150.00$              1,200.00$          12.50 -                      -$                    12.50 1,875.00$          -$                       1,875.00$          156% (675.00)$            X

8 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 15 INCH LF 1,644.00 80.00$                131,520.00$      1,644.00 -                      -$                    1,644.00 131,520.00$      -$                       131,520.00$      100% -$                    X

9 SUBDRAIN INSTALLATION, LESS THAN 10 INCH LF 200.00 20.00$                4,000.00$          200.00 -                      -$                    200.00 4,000.00$          -$                       4,000.00$          100% -$                    X

10 MANHOLE, SW-301, 48 INCH EA 5.00 6,000.00$          30,000.00$        5.00 -                      -$                    5.00 30,000.00$        -$                       30,000.00$        100% -$                    X

11 CONNECTION TO EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE EA 1.00 3,000.00$          3,000.00$          1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 3,000.00$          -$                       3,000.00$          100% -$                    X

12 GRANULAR SURFACING SY 36.70 15.50$                568.85$              36.70 -                      -$                    36.70 568.85$              -$                       568.85$              100% -$                    X

13 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT SY 214.00 65.00$                13,910.00$        230.29 -                      -$                    230.29 14,968.85$        -$                       14,968.85$        108% (1,058.85)$         X

14 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SY 214.00 15.00$                3,210.00$          230.29 -                      -$                    230.29 3,454.35$          -$                       3,454.35$          108% (244.35)$            X

15 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, WATERBORNE STA 1.80 850.00$              1,530.00$          1.80 -                      -$                    1.80 1,530.00$          -$                       1,530.00$          100% -$                    X

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.00 2,750.00$          2,750.00$          1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 2,750.00$          -$                       2,750.00$          100% -$                    X

17 SAFETY FENCE LF 300.00 3.25$                  975.00$              397.00 -                      -$                    397.00 1,290.25$          -$                       1,290.25$          132% (315.25)$            X

18 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 3 SEED MIX ACRE 0.65 4,500.00$          2,925.00$          0.65 0.05 225.00$              0.70 3,150.00$          -$                       3,150.00$          108% (225.00)$            X

19 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 5 SEED MIX ACRE 0.65 3,500.00$          2,275.00$          -                      -                      -$                    -                      -$                    -$                       -$                    0% 2,275.00$          X

20 SWPPP MANAGEMENT LS 1.00 3,000.00$          3,000.00$          0.90 0.10 300.00$              1.00 3,000.00$          -$                       3,000.00$          100% -$                    X

21 TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCTS (RECP) SY 600.00 1.65$                  990.00$              600.00 198.33 327.24$              798.33 1,317.24$          -$                       1,317.24$          133% (327.24)$            X

22 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF 1,555.00 1.85$                  2,876.75$          1,663.00 -                      -$                    1,663.00 3,076.55$          -$                       3,076.55$          107% (199.80)$            X

23 SILT FENCE, MAINTENANCE LF 1,555.00 0.25$                  388.75$              -                      -                      -$                    -                      -$                    -$                       -$                    0% 388.75$              X

24 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL LF 1,555.00 0.50$                  777.50$              -                      1,663.00 831.50$              1,663.00 831.50$              -$                       831.50$              107% (54.00)$               X

25 CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 175.00 18.50$                3,237.50$          175.00 -                      -$                    175.00 3,237.50$          -$                       3,237.50$          100% -$                    X

26 MOBILIZATION LS 1.00 30,000.00$        30,000.00$        1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 30,000.00$        -$                       30,000.00$        100% -$                    X

27 FIELD FENCE, REMOVAL AND REINSTALL LF 255.00 5.00$                  1,275.00$          150.00 105.00 525.00$              255.00 1,275.00$          -$                       1,275.00$          100% -$                    X

8001 Trench Foundation, 2" per Sudas Spec (Per Ton) Ton 200.00 38.50$                7,700.00$          402.08 -                      -$                    402.08 15,480.08$        -$                       15,480.08$        201% (7,780.08)$         X

8002 Extra Traffic Control LS 1.00 424.24$              424.24$              1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 424.24$              -$                       424.24$              100% -$                    X

8003 Subgrade Treatment, Geogrid (Sudas Type 1) SY 280.00 4.50$                  1,260.00$          284.67 -                      -$                    284.67 1,281.02$          -$                       1,281.02$          102% (21.02)$               X

8004 Mulch Disturbed Farmland Per Requested Changes. (PQ Item) ACRE 3.50 1,150.00$          4,025.00$          3.50 -                      -$                    3.50 4,025.00$          -$                       4,025.00$          100% -$                    X

278,572.59$      2,208.74$          288,119.43$      -$                       288,119.43$      (9,546.84)$         

W. 27TH ST SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION

RC-000-3240

From (Contractor):

To (Owner):

Application Period:

Current Pay 

Application 

Quantities

Application Date: 05/20/22

Via (Engineer): Matthew Tolan

Civil Engineer II

04/28/22 05/18/22

City of Cedar Falls

Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc.

Balance to                               

Date                                                  

( F - M )

It
e

m
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Estimate

Totals

Current Pay 

Application                            

Value                                             

( E x H )

Estimated 

Quantity Installed                                    

( G + H )

Total                    

Completed                    

Value                                           

( E x J )

Value of Materials 

Presently Stored                                     

(Column M on 

Stored Materials)

Total Completed                  

and Stored                 

to Date                                     

( K + L )

% Original 

Contract                          

( M ÷ F )

           Item

Bid                             

Quantity

Unit                                     

Price

Bid                                       

Value

Previous Pay 

Application 

Quantities

112

Item 21.



113

Item 21.



114

Item 21.



115

Item 21.



116

Item 21.



117

Item 21.



118

Item 22.



119

Item 22.



120

Item 22.



121

Item 22.



122

Item 22.



123

Item 22.



124

Item 22.



125

Item 22.



126

Item 22.



127

Item 22.



128

Item 22.



129

Item 22.



130

Item 22.



131

Item 22.



132

Item 22.



133

Item 22.



134

Item 22.



135

Item 22.



136

Item 22.



137

Item 22.



138

Item 22.



139

Item 22.



140

Item 22.



141

Item 22.



142

Item 22.



143

Item 22.



144

Item 22.



145

Item 22.



146

Item 22.



147

Item 22.



148

Item 22.



149

Item 22.



150

Item 22.



151

Item 22.



152

Item 22.



153

Item 22.



154

Item 22.



155

Item 22.



156

Item 22.



157

Item 22.



158

Item 22.



159

Item 22.



160

Item 22.



161

Item 22.



162

Item 22.



163

Item 22.



164

Item 22.



165

Item 22.



166

Item 22.



167

Item 22.



168

Item 22.



169

Item 22.



170

Item 22.



171

Item 22.



172

Item 22.



173

Item 22.



174

Item 22.



175

Item 22.



176

Item 22.



177

Item 22.



178

Item 22.



179

Item 22.



180

Item 22.



181

Item 22.



182

Item 22.



183

Item 22.



184

Item 22.



185

Item 22.



186

Item 22.



187

Item 22.



188

Item 22.



189

Item 22.



190

Item 22.



191

Item 22.



192

Item 22.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of September 6, 2022
	220906MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation - Breast Cancer Awareness
	2022-10_BreastCancerAwarenessMonth

	Item 3.	Proclamation - Earth Science Week
	2022-10-W1_EarthScienceWeek

	Item 4.	Hearing-Tobacco Violation-Up in Smoke
	1-Order Assessing Penalty, 2nd violation
	2-Notice of Hearing, 2nd Violation
	3-Hearing Complaint, 2nd Violation

	Item 5.	Ord. 3016-City Council Procedures
	1-CouncilCodeChangeRequestMemo Revised 8-31-22
	2-Ordinance Council Rules of Procedure Redline-Revised 9-6-22
	3-3016-Council Rules of Procedure FINAL-Revised 9-6-22

	Item 6.	Ord. 3017-Utility Parkway Parking
	1. Memo - Parking Prohibited on Utility Parkway Ordinance
	2. Utility Parkway
	3. Utility Parkway - request for No Parking Ordinance 2022
	4. Redlined Sec._23_374_rev
	5. Ord. 3017-Parking on Utility Parkway_rev 08.03.22 (2)

	Item 7.	Standing Meeting Minutes - 09/06/22
	09-06-22 Administrative Committee Minutes-Final

	Item 8.	Resignation - CF Health Trust
	Michael-Resignation-CF Health Trust Board

	Item 9.	Boards & Commission Appointments
	2022-09-12_HRC_Appoint_Wright-Mallin-Kliegl
	HRC Apps
	2022-09-12_ACB_Hoekstra-Wood
	2022-09-12_VTB_Reappoint_Croshier-Sidebotham-Dutton-Johnson
	2022_05_10-PREC_LangelAppoint
	PK & Rec App

	Item 10.	Liquor Beer 9-19-22
	Liquor Beer 09-19-22

	Item 11.	Reappoint-Acting Chief
	2022-09-13_ACB_ActingChiefReappointment

	Item 12.	Animal Services Contract
	2726_001
	Animal Control Contract

	Item 13.	College Hill Urban Revitalization Application - 1803 College Street
	1_Council memo for 09-19-2022 meeting
	2_College Hill Map
	3_1803 College Street Application
	4_Building Permit

	Item 14.	College Hill Urban Revitalization Application - 1809 College Street
	1_Council memo for 09-19-2022 meeting
	2_College Hill Map
	3_1809 College Street Application
	4_Building Permit

	Item 15.	Service/Product Agreement: Ostby Dance
	Memo for Council 9-12-22
	Ostby Dance
	Ostby 1
	Ostby, Steven & Hilda (Updated Cert of Insurance City of Cedar Falls)

	Item 16.	Grant Application: Iowa Tourism Grant
	IA Tourism Grant Funding _Tourism Programs_09012022

	Item 17.	Grant Application: Destination Iowa
	1. Council Resolution of Support 9-19-22
	2. Cedar Valley Destination Iowa Project List - Cedar Falls
	Res-Destination Iowa-Application

	Item 18.	Res-Financial Assurances-Destination Iowa Grant
	Res-Destination Iowa-Financial Assurances

	Item 19.	Railroad Crossing Elimination: Grant Application
	1. Council memo grant submittal 9-12-22
	2. Letter of Support from IANR

	Item 20.	Contracts - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	1. Memo Contracts - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment
	2. 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project Iowa Flatworks Form of Contract
	3. 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project Iowa Flatworks Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project Iowa Flatworks Certificate of Liability Insurance
	5. 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project Iowa Flatworks Form of Proposal

	Item 21.	Final Acceptance - W 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project
	1. Memo Final Out - W. 27th Sanitary
	2. Retainage Release - Signed
	3. PPM Bond

	Item 22.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 091922
	2 Council Invoices 091922

	Bottom

